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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO 

EASTERN DIVISION 

LONDELL EASLEY, individually and as 
a representative of the Classes, 

Plaintiff, 

V. 

THE RESERVES NETWORK, INC., 

Case No. l:16-cv-00544 

JUDGE SOLOMON OLIVER, JR. 

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 
AND RELEASE 

Defendant. ) 

Plaintiff Londell Easley ("Named Plaintiff' or "Class Representative"), individually and 

on behalf of the proposed Settlement Class, and Defendant The Reserves Network, Inc. 

("Defendant" or "Reserves Network") hereby enter into this Settlement Agreement to resolve 

this class action. The parties hereto are together the "Parties." 

I. RECITALS 

I. On February 5, 2016, Named Plaintiff Londel! Easley filed this proposed class 

action against Defendant The Reserves Network, Inc. in the Court of Common Pleas for 

Cuyahoga County, Ohio. On March 7, 2016, Defendant removed the lawsuit to this Court. 

2. The operative complaint in this Action alleges that Defendant violated the Fair 

Credit Reporting Act ("FCRA") by procuring and using background reports without complying 

with certain aspects of 15 U.S.C. § 168 lb. In Count I of the Complaint, Plaintiff alleges that 

Defendant failed to provide a stand-alone disclosure in violation of 15. U.S.C. § 168 lb(b)(2). In 

Count II of the Complaint, Plaintiff alleges that Defendant failed to provide pre-adverse action 

notice in violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(3). Both claims stem from Plaintiffs employment 

with Defendant, a temporary staffing agency. 
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3. On March 17, 2017, this Court remanded Count I of the Complaint to the Court of 

Common Pleas for Cuyahoga County, Ohio, from which it came (ECF 51). Plaintiff and 

Defendant have resolved those claims on an individual basis. This Court retained jurisdiction 

over Count II of Plaintiff's Complaint. 

4. . With respect to Count II, Plaintiff asserted that Defendant failed to provide 

Plaintiff and putative class members with a Pre-Adverse Action Notice ("PAAN"). Plaintiff thus 

alleged that Defendant violated 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b)(3) by failing to provide Plaintiff and 

putative class members with a required PAAN. 

5. In late 2016, the parties agreed to engage in good faith settlement negotiations. In 

preparation for the mediation, the Parties exchanged numerous pieces of information related to 

this Action, through both formal and informal discovery, and conducted depositions of Plaintiff 

and Defendant's corporate representative. Defendant provided information on its databases, 

class size, recordkeeping systems, and internal policies and controls. The Parties also engaged in 

numerous conference calls, and provided the mediator with detailed mediation statements setting 

forth their positions on the merits of the Named Plaintiff's claims, the prospects for class 

certification, and their respective views on an appropriate settlement. 

6. On January 12, 2017, the Parties attended a full-day mediation with mediator 

Jerome F. Weiss. The Parties did not reach a settlement at that mediation. 

7. After the mediation, the parties continued to negotiate by phone and email, 

resulting in this settlement of Count II, the material terms of which were agreed to in August, 

2017. 

8. Defendant denies that it has engaged in any wrongdoing and does not admit or 

concede any liability in connection with any facts or claims that have been alleged against it, but 
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has agreed to this Settlement Agreement because of the substantial expense of litigation, the 

length of time necessary to resolve the issues presented, and the disruption to its business 

operations. 

9. Based upon their analysis and evaluation of several factors, Class Counsel 

recognize the substantial risks of continued litigation and delay, including the likelihood that the 

case, if not settled now, might not result in any recovery for the Named Plaintiff and Settlement 

Class. 

10. Class Counsel have conducted a thorough study and investigation of the law and 

facts relating to the claims that were asserted and that could have been asserted, as well as a 

thorough study and investigation of the scope and identity of the Settlement Class (which are 

based in part on Defendant's discovery responses), and have concluded, taking into account the 

benefits of this Settlement and the risks and delay of further litigation, that this Settlement is fair 

and reasonable and in the best interests of the Named Plaintiff and Settlement Class. 

11. Subject to the approval of the Court, the Parties wish to settle this Action, effect a 

compromise, and terminate the Action. In light of the above Recitals, the Parties understand and 

agree that the claims asserted here shall be settled, compromised, and released, subject to the 

approval of the Court, upon and subject to the following terms and conditions: 

II. DEFINITIONS 

12. Action or Litigation means this lawsuit, styled as Londell Easley v. The Reserves 

Network, Inc., No. 1:16-cv-00544 (N.D. Ohio). 

13. Agreement means this Settlement Agreement and Release. 

14. Class Counsel means Berger & Montague, P.C. 
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15. Class List means a list of all members of the Settlement Class, to be generated by 

Defendant and provided to Class Counsel and the Settlement Administrator not more than seven 

(7) business days after the Court enters a preliminary approval order. The Class List shall be 

generated in the following manner: (a) Class Counsel will provide Defendant with the Employee 

ID Number for each of the Class Members, and (b) Defendant will provide the Settlement 

Administrator with the full names, last-known addresses, and Social Security Numbers. The 

Settlement Administrator shall keep the Class List confidential and shall not share it with 

Plaintiff or Plaintiff's counsel. The Class List shall be in Excel or another agreed-upon format, 

and shall be produced at Defendantts expense. 

16. Class Representative or Named Plaintiff means Londell Easley. 

17. Court means the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, 

Eastern Division. 

18. Cv Pres Recipient means Public Justice, a non-profit organization dedicated to 

protecting consumer rights, including consumer rights under the Fair Credit Reporting Act. 

20. Defendant or Released Parties or Reserves Network means Defendant The 

Reserves Network, Inc. and its respective present, former, and future parents, subsidiaries, 

corporate family members, officers, directors, insurers and employees, individually, jointly, and 

severally. 

21. Effective Date means the first day after the first date on which all of the following 

have occurred: 

a. all Parties, Class Counsel, and Defendants  counsel have executed this 

Agreement; 

b. the Court has issued a preliminary approval order; 
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c. reasonable notice has been given to Settlement Class Members including 

providing them an opportunity to opt out of or object to the Settlement; 

d. the Court has held a fairness hearing, entered Final Judgment approving the 

Settlement, awarded the Class Representative any service payment, and 

awarded Class Counsel their reasonable attorneys' fees and costs; and 

e. only if there are written objections filed before the fairness hearing and 

those objections are not later withdrawn, the last of the following events to 

occur: 

i. if no appeal is filed, then the date on which the objector's time to 

appeal the Final Judgment has expired with no appeal or any other 

judicial review having been taken or sought; or 

ii. if an appeal of the Final Judgment has been timely filed or other 

judicial review was taken or sought, the date that order is finally 

affirmed by an appellate court with no possibility of subsequent appeal 

or other judicial review or the date the appeals or any other judicial 

review are finally dismissed with no possibility of subsequent appeal 

or other judicial review. 

It is the intention of the Parties that the Settlement shall not become effective until the 

Court's Final Judgment has become final. 

22. Final Approval Order or Final Judgment means the Court's order granting final 

approval of this Settlement. 

23. Gross Settlement Amount or "GSA" means $455,000, which shall be the 

maximum total amount from which the Named Plaintiff and Settlement Class Members will be 
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paid, from which all out-of-pocket costs of settlement administration will be paid, and from 

which Class Counsel's attorneys' fees, costs, and expenses and Named Plaintiff's service 

payment, if approved by the Court, will be paid. Defendant will pay the GSA into a common 

fund, which shall be established and maintained by the Settlement Administrator as a Qualified 

Settlement Fund for federal tax purposes pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1 .468B- 1. The Settlement 

Administrator, on behalf of the Settlement Class, shall be responsible for all administrative, 

accounting, and tax-compliance activities in connection with the Qualified Settlement Fund, 

including any filing necessary to obtain Qualified Settlement Fund status pursuant to Treas. Reg. 

§ 1.468B-1. Defendant shall provide to the Settlement Administrator any documentation 

necessary to facilitate obtaining Qualified Settlement Fund status. The GSA shall represent the 

full extent of Defendant's financial obligations under this Settlement Agreement. In no 

circumstance shall Defendant pay more in connection with settling this action than $455,000. 

There shall be no reversion to Defendant from the GSA under any circumstance. 

24. Net Settlement Fund means the amount of money remaining after the Gross 

Settlement Amount is reduced by the following amounts, as approved by the Court: (a) the 

service payment to the Named Plaintiff (b) reasonable attorneys' fees and costs to Class 

Counsel; and (c) the fees of the Settlement Administrator. 

25. Opt-Out Deadline or Objections Deadline means the date the Court establishes as 

the deadline by which Settlement Class Members must mail and postmark a written notice of 

their intent to opt-out of the Settlement and by which objections to the preliminarily approved 

Settlement must be filed with the Court. The Parties shall jointly request that this date be no less 

than forty-five (45) days after the mailing of the Postcard Notice. 
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26. Postcard Notice means the double-sided postcard attached hereto as Exhibit A, 

subject to Court approval, which the Settlement Administrator will mail, via first-class U.S. mail, 

to each Settlement Class Member. 

27. Parties means the Class Representative and Defendant. 

28. Settlement or Agreement means this Settlement Agreement and Release. 

29. Settlement Administrator means a third-party administrator to be selected by 

Class Counsel following a competitive bidding process. 

30. Settlement Class means the following: 

All individuals against whom an adverse action was taken before April 22, 2017 
regarding their employment with Defendant based in whole or in part on information contained 
in a consumer report generatedfrom February 5, 2014 through February 5, 2016. 

The Parties, in good faith, agree that the Settlement Class comprises 388 individuals. 

31. Settlement Class Member means any individual who is a member of the 

Settlement Class who does not file a timely and valid written notice of intent to opt-out by the 

Opt-Out Deadline. 

32. Settlement Website means a website to be established and maintained by the 

Settlement Administrator, at a URL to be agreed upon by the Parties, and as described below in 

paragraphs 42 and 43. 

III. RELIEF AND BENEFITS 

33. In exchange for the release of claims described below, Defendant shall deposit the 

GSA of $455,000 with the Settlement Administrator, which shall be distributed as discussed in 

this section. 

34. The GSA shall represent the full and complete extent of Defendant's financial 

obligations under this Settlement Agreement, and Defendant's financial obligations shall be 
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complete when Defendant deposits the GSA with the Settlement Administrator. There shall be 

no reversion to Defendant from the GSA under any circumstance. 

35. Distribution of Net Settlement Fund to Settlement Class Members: Any 

Settlement Class Member who does not optout shall receive a pro rata share of the Net 

Settlement Fund. 

36. Service Payment to Class Representative: Class Counsel will petition the Court 

for a service payment to Class Representative, in consideration for his service as a Named 

Plaintiff not to exceed $1,500. If approved by the Court, this service payment will be paid to the 

Class Representative by the Settlement Administrator at the same time that checks are issued to 

the Settlement Class Members. This amount shall be in addition to the amount paid to the Class 

Representative as a class payment described in paragraph 35 above, but shall come out of the 

GSA. By signing this Agreement, the Parties warrant that the Class Representative's service 

payment was negotiated only after the total amount of the GSA had been agreed upon. Should 

the Court decline to approve any requested payment, the Settlement shall still be effective. 

37, Attorneys' Fees and Costs: Class counsel may apply to the Court for an award of 

fees and costs to be paid from the GSA. The application for attorneys' fees shall be in an amount 

not to exceed Class Counsel's actual costs and lodestar. Costs incurred by Class Counsel that are 

associated with the administration of the Settlement shall also be eligible for reimbursement if 

approved by the Court. By signing this Agreement, the Parties warrant that the amount of fees 

Class Counsel could seek from the GSA was negotiated only after the total amount of the GSA 

and the method of distribution to Settlement Class Members had been agreed upon. Should the 

Court decline to approve any requested payment of attorneys' fees, or reduce any such requested 
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payment, the Settlement shall still be effective. In no event will Defendant be responsible for 

attorneys' fees and costs outside of, or in addition to, the GSA. 

38. Settlement Administrator's Expenses: Reasonable expenses of the Settlement 

Administrator shall be paid from the GSA, subject to Court approval. In no event will Defendant 

be responsible for any settlement administration expenses outside of, or in addition to, the GSA. 

39. Cv Pres: Settlement Class Members shall have 180 days after checks are mailed 

to negotiate their checks. Thirty (30) days following the close of the check-negotiation period, 

the Settlement Administrator shall distribute any remaining amounts in the Net Settlement Fund 

to the Cy Pres Recipient. 

40. Taxes: The Settlement Administrator on Defendant's behalf will issue to each 

Settlement Class Member who received and cashed his or her settlement check, an IRS Form 

1099 if required by law and within the time required by law. Nothing in this Agreement shall be 

construed as Defendant or Class Counsel providing any advice regarding the payment of taxes or 

the tax consequences of a Settlement Class Member's participation in any portion of this 

Agreement. The Parties expressly agree that the Settlement Class Members are solely 

responsible for any tax liabilities that may arise as a consequence of the payment made as set 

forth in the paragraphs above. 

IV. NOTICE, OBJECTIONS, AND OPT-OUTS 

A. NOTICE, WEBSITE, AND PHONE SUPPORT 

41. Within fourteen (14) days of receiving the Class List from Defendant, the 

Settlement Administrator shall mail the Postcard Notice to Settlement Class Members via first-

class U.S. mail. 
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42. Prior to mailing, the Settlement Administrator shall utilize the U.S. Postal Office's 

National Change of Address System and appropriate proprietary software to verify and/or update 

Settlement Class Members' addresses. Should any Postcard Notice be returned as undeliverable 

or returned with a forwarding address, the Settlement Administrator shall re-mail the Postcard 

Notice to the forwarding address and, if no forwarding addresses are provided, utilize any other 

legally available database for the purpose of finding new addresses and remailing. 

43. The Settlement Administrator shall cause the Settlement Website to "go live" on 

the date that the Postcard Notice is mailed and once the Parties have agreed to the content of the 

Settlement Website. The Settlement Website shall: 

a. Be password protected so that only Settlement Class Members or their 

attorney should have access to the website. 

b. Provide Settlement Class Members with an opportunity to update their 

contact information; 

c. Contain copies of the pleadings in this matter, including the operative 

complaint, this Agreement, and copies of any orders issued by the Court in 

connection with this Settlement; 

d. Be updated to include a copy of Class Counsel's motion for attorneys' fees 

and expenses within 24 hours of that motion being filed with the Court; 

e. Absent agreement by the Parties, not be taken down until all remaining funds 

from the GSA are distributed following the Effective Date; 

f. Be updated as appropriate regarding developments in the Litigation; and 

g. Contain the Long Form Notice attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

B. OBJECTION AND OPTOUT REQUIREMENTS 
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44. Right to Opt Out: All individuals in the Settlement Class will have the right to be 

excluded from, i.e., to "opt out" of, the Settlement Class. On or before the Opt-Out Deadline, 

each individual who elects to opt out of the Settlement must send, by first-class U.S. mail, 

written notice addressed to the Settlement Administrator indicating his or her name and address 

and stating that he or she desires to opt out of the Settlement or otherwise does not want to 

participate in the Settlement. Any individual who does not timely (as measured by the postmark 

on that individuaPs written notice) opt out of the Settlement by written notice correctly directed 

to the Settlement Administrator and containing the requisite information shall remain a member 

of the Settlement Class and shall be bound by any orders of the Court about the Settlement or the 

Settlement Class. In no event shall individuals who purport to opt out of the Settlement as a 

group, aggregate, collective, or class be considered a successful opt out. Any individual in the 

Settlement Class who fails to timely and validly opt out of the Settlement Class under this 

Settlement Agreement shall be bound by the terms of this Settlement. 

45. Objections: Any Settlement Class Member who wishes to object to the Settlement 

must file a timely written statement of objection with the Clerk of Court, and mail a copy of that 

objection with the requisite postmark to the Settlement Administrator no later than the 

Objections Deadline. The Settlement Administrator shall transmit the objection to Class Counsel 

and Defendants  counsel within one (1) business day of receipt. The objection must state the case 

name and number; the basis for and an explanation of the objection; the name, address, telephone 

number, and email address of the Settlement Class Member making the objection; and a 

statement of whether the Settlement Class Member intends to appear at the fairness hearing, 

either with or without counsel. In addition, any objection must be personally signed by the 

Settlement Class Member and/or, if represented by counsel, then by counsel. Any Settlement 
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Class Member who fails to make objections in the manner specified above shall be deemed to 

have waived any objections and shall be foreclosed from making any objections, whether by 

appeal or otherwise, to the Settlement. No Settlement Class Member shall be entitled to contest 

in any way the approval of the terms and conditions of this Agreement or the Courts Final 

Approval Order or Final Judgment except by filing and serving written objections in accordance 

with the provisions of this Agreement. 

46. Class Counsel and Defendant agree that no payments or other consideration shall 

be provided to any objector or to counsel for any objector to the Settlement in connection with 

the objector withdrawing an objection, foregoing the right to appeal an objection, or withdrawing 

an appeal unless such payment is disclosed to and approved by the Court. 

V. CLASS CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO FED. R. CIV. P.23 

47. The Parties stipulate to class certification pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 for 

purposes of settlement only. Should the Settlement not be approved by the Court, Defendant 

specifically reserves its right to contest a future motion for class certification. The Parties will 

request approval of a Settlement Class for purposes of administration and resolution of this 

Action only. If the Court does not grant either preliminary or final approval of this Settlement, 

then the Parties agree to revert to their previous positions. 

VI. RELEASE OF CLAIMS 

48. Settlement Class Release: On the Effective Date of this Settlement Agreement, for 

the Settlement Class benefits and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 

sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by Named Plaintiff and Class Counsel, all 

Settlement Class Members fully and forever release, waive, acquit, and discharge the Released 

Parties from any and all claims, lawsuits, rights, or causes of action of any kind the Settlement 
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Class asserted or could have asserted under 15 U.S.C. § 168 lb(b) of the Fair Credit Reporting 

Act and any analogous state law claims (collectively, the "Settlement Class Members' Released 

Claims"). This release explicitly includes any and all claims for actual damages, statutory 

damages, and punitive damages, as well as for attorneys' fees and costs. The Parties agree that 

the payments made hereunder are meant to compensate Settlement Class Members for all harnTts 

incurred as a result of the allegations set forth in the Complaint. It is expressly intended and 

understood by the Parties that this Settlement Agreement is to be construed as a complete 

settlement, accord, and satisfaction of the Settlement Class Members' Released Claims. 

VII. NO ADMISSION OF LIABILITY 

49. Defendant does not admit any liability, and this Settlement shall not constitute an 

admission of liability by Defendant. Nothing in this Agreement nor any action taken under it 

shall be deemed or construed as an admission of wrongdoing of any nature on the part of 

Defendant with respect to any allegations or claims, nor does it constitute an admission that 

others are similarly situated or that any putative class meets the requirements for class 

certification. 

VIII. TIMING OF BRIEFING, CAFA NOTICE, FINAL FAIRNESS HEARING, AND 
PAYMENTS 

50. Named Plaintiff shall endeavor to move for preliminary settlement approval 

within thirty days of the execution of this agreement and shall propose the preliminary approval 

order attached hereto as Exhibit C, and shall request that the Settlement be preliminarily 

approved without a formal hearing and based on the submission of pleadings only and the terms 

of this Agreement. Defendant shall not oppose the motion for preliminary approval. 

51. Within ten (10) days of the Named Plaintiff moving for preliminary settlement 

approval, the Settlement Administrator shall serve upon the appropriate state officials of each 
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state in which a Named Plaintiff or a Settlement Class Member resides and upon the pertinent 

U.S. Attorney General for each such state, a notice of this proposed Settlement, and other filings 

required by the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005 ('CAFA"), 28 U.S.C. § 1715. The Settlement 

Administrator will provide a copy of this notice to Class Counsel and to Defendant, and will file 

with the Court a notice of compliance with CAFA's requirements. 

52. Named Plaintiff will file his Motion for Attorneys' Fees and Costs, Class 

Representative service payment, and Payment of the Settlement Administrator's Expenses no 

later than fourteen (14) days before the Opt-Out Deadline. 

53. Named Plaintiff shall move for final settlement approval no later than thirty (30) 

days after the Opt-Out Deadline, and in cooperation with Defendant's counsel, Class Counsel 

shall propose the Final Approval Order attached hereto as Exhibit D. Defendant shall not oppose 

that motion, and the Parties shall jointly request a fairness hearing as soon as is practicable but 

no sooner than forty-five (45) days after the Opt-Out Deadline. 

54. No later than five (5) business days following the Effective Date, Defendant shall 

wire transfer the GSA to the account established by the Settlement Administrator. 

55. As soon as is practicable, but no later than fourteen (14) days following the 

Effective Date, the Settlement Administrator shall mail checks to all Settlement Class Members, 

including the service payment to the Class Representative. 

56. As soon as is practicable, but no later than fourteen (14) days following the 

Effective Date, the Settlement Administrator shall wire any approved attorneys' fees and costs to 

Class Counsel. 

IX. SETTLEMENT CONTINGENT ON APPROVAL 
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57. Settlement Contingent on Final Approval: This Settlement is contingent upon 

final approval of a class action settlement on behalf of the Settlement Class described herein. In 

the event that a court of competent jurisdiction rejects any portion of this Settlement Agreement, 

the Parties agree that they will return to mediation with a mutually acceptable mediator and/or 

participate in continued negotiations. In the event that a court of competent jurisdiction does not 

finally approve such settlement for the Settlement Class, this Agreement shall have no effect and 

the Parties shall revert to their original positions, and nothing in this Agreement shall be used as 

an admission or concession of fact or law in this or any other lawsuit. 

58. Settlement Modification. The Parties may agree by stipulation executed by 

counsel to modify the exhibits to this Agreement to effectuate the purpose of this Agreement or 

to conform to guidance from the Court about the contents of such exhibits without the need to 

further amend this Agreement. Any stipulation modifying the Settlement must be filed with the 

Court and is subject to the Courts approval. 

X. MISCELLANEOUS 

59. Entire Agreement: This Agreement, together with its exhibits, constitutes the full 

and entire agreement among the Parties with regard to the subject matter and supersedes all prior 

representations, agreements, promises, or warranties, written, oral, or otherwise. No party shall 

be liable or bound to any other persons for any prior representation, agreement, promise, or 

warranty, oral or otherwise, except for those that are expressly set forth in or attached to this 

Agreement. 

60. No Prior Assignments: The Named Plaintiff and Class Counsel represent, 

covenant, and warrant that they have not directly or indirectly, assigned, transferred, 

encumbered, or purported to assign, transfer, or encumber to any person or entity any portion of 

15 

Case: 1:16-cv-00544-SO  Doc #: 54-2  Filed:  10/17/17  16 of 44.  PageID #: 527



any liability, claim, demand, action, cause of action, or any rights released or discharged in this 

Settlement except as set forth in this Agreement. 

61. Construction: The Parties agree that the terms and conditions of this Agreement 

are the result of lengthy, arm's-length negotiations between the Parties and that this Agreement 

will not be construed in favor of or against any party by reason of the extent to which any party 

or the party's counsel participated in the drafting of this Agreement. 

62. Construction of Captions and Interpretations: Paragraph titles, captions, or 

headings in this Agreement are inserted as a matter of convenience and for reference and in no 

way define, limit, extend, or describe the scope of this Agreement or any provision in it. Each 

term of this Agreement is contractual and is not merely a recital. 

63. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. All executed 

counterparts and each of them shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. This 

Agreement may be executed by signature delivered by facsimile, PDF, text, or .jpg and need not 

be the original "ink" signature. A complete set of executed counterparts shall be filed with the 

Court. This Agreement shall become binding upon its execution by the Class Representative, 

Defendant, and their counsel. 

16 

Case: 1:16-cv-00544-SO  Doc #: 54-2  Filed:  10/17/17  17 of 44.  PageID #: 528



DocuSgn Enve'ope ID: D5930A7A-ECE4BC7-9A9C-2829E68E9478 

iN WITNESS WHERFOF the Parties and their counsel have caused this Agreement to be duly 

executed. 

Date: 9/6/2017 
__________- _______ __________ 

Londell 

      

);: 
____ 

 

/ 

   

By __________________ 

F. Michelle Drake (MN Bar # 0387366 
Joseph C. Hashmall (MN Bar # 0392610) 
43 S,E, Main Street, Suite 505 
Minneapolis, MN 55414 
Tel: (612) 594-5999 
Fax: (612) 584-4470 
emdrake@brn.net 
jhashmall@bm.net 

O'TOOLE, MCLAUGHLIN, DOOLEY & 
PECORA, CO, LPA 
Matthew A. Dooley (OH Bar # 0081482) 
5455 Detroit Road (Route 254) 
Sheffield Village, OH 44054 
Tel: (440) 930-4001 
Fax: (440) 934-7205 
mdoo1ey@omdp1awcom 
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COUNSEL FOR DEFENDANT 
REMINGER CO., L.P.A. 

Date: fd / 7 By: ____ 

A rew . Dorman (#0063410) 
Ja es Connor (#0063428) 
Gregory G. Guice (#0076524 
Jonathan H. Krol (#0088 102) 
101 West Prospect Avenue, Suite 1400 
Cleveland, OH 44115 
Tel: (216) 430-2125 
adorman@reminger.com 
joconnorreminger.com 
gguicereminger.com 
jkro1reminger.com 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO 

Case No I I6ev-OO544SO 

COURT ORDERED 

NOTICE 

Easley v. The Reserves 

Network, Inc. 

Class Action Notice 

Easley v. The Reserves Ntwk, Inc. 

  

do ADMINISTRATOR 

 

FIRST CLASS 
ADDRESS 

 

MAIL 

  

US POSTAGE 

  

PAID 

  

PermitS 

Postal Service: Please do not mark barcode 

ABC-I234567-8 

First Last 
Addressl 
Address2 
City, State, Zip Code 

A settlement has been reached in a class action lawsuit for money damages from The Reserves Network ("TRN") for 
alleged violations of the Fair Credit Reporting Act. Plaintiff claims that TRN failed to provide required notice before 
taking adverse action on employees and applicants based on background checks. TR.N vigorously denies that it violated 
any law, but has agreed to the Settlement to avoid the uncertainties and expenses associated with continuing the 
Litigation, This Notice summarizes the proposed Settlement. For the precise terms and conditions of the Settlement, 
review the Settlement Agreement, available at www.URL.com, 

Am I a Class Member? TRN's records indicate you are a Class Member, 

What Can I Get? If the Settlement is approved by the Court and you do not choose to exclude yourself from the 
Settlement Class, you will receive a settlement payment. The amount of your payment will depend on the amount of 
attorneys' fees, Class Representative award, and administration costs approved by the Court. The total settlement fund 
is $455,000. Class Counsel estimates that each class member will receive approximately $_, although this number will 
vary, as noted above.. 

How Do I Get a Payment? You do not need to take any action in order to receive a payment. 

What Are My Other Options? You may exclude yourself from the Settlement Class by mailing a written notice to the 
Settlement Administrator by Date. If you exclude yourself, you cannot receive a settlement payment, but you keep any 
rights you may have to sue TR1' over the legal issues in this Litigation. If you do not exclude yourself you and/or your 
lawyer have the right to appear before the Court and/or object to the Settlement. Your written objection must be filed 
with the Court, and a copy mailed to the Settlement Administrator, no later than Date. Specific instructions on how to 
object to or exclude yourself from the Settlement are available at www,URl,.com (password: XXXXXX). 

Who Represents Me? The Court has appointed Berger & Montague, P.C. to serve as Class Counsel, They will petition 
to be paid legal fees and expenses up to $XX from the settlement fund. However, you may hire your own lawyer at your 
expense if you so choose, 

When Will the Court Consider the Settlement? The Court will hold a final approval hearing on DATE at TIME at 
Carl B. Stokes U.S. Courthouse, 801 West Superior Avenue, Courtroom l9A, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. At that hearing, 
the Court will hear any objections concerning the fairness of the Settlement, decide whether to approve the requested 
attorneys' fees, Class Representative award, and administration costs, and determine the final fairness of the Settlement, 

For more information, including the full Notice and Settlement Agreement, go to 
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liic Iii t4)nI tioli 

1. \\ ti did 1 ct 11k \ticc'? 

The Court in this case approved the posting of this Notice so that it could be viewed by potential members of 
the Settlement Class. The Settlement Class includes: 

All individuals against whom an adverse action was taken before April 22, 2017 regarding their 
employment with Defendant based in whole or in part on information contained in a consumer 
report generatedfrom February 5, 2014 through February 5, 2016. 

If you are unsure of whether you are in the Settlement Class, you can contact the Settlement Administrator at 1-
800-xxx-xxxx. 

Composition of the Settlement Class is based upon The Reserves Network ('TRN") records and investigation. 

This Notice has been posted because members of the Settlement Class have a right to know about a proposed 
settlement of a class action lawsuit in which they are class members, and about all of their options, before the 
Court decides whether to approve the Settlement. If the Court approves the Settlement, and after objections or 
appeals relating to that Settlement are resolved, the benefits provided for by the Settlement will be available to 
members of the Settlement Class. 

This Notice explains the Litigation, the Settlement, your legal rights, what benefits are available, who is eligible 
for them, and how to get them. A full copy of the Settlement Agreement may be reviewed at the Settlement 
Website: www,liRLeom (Password: XXXXXX). This Notice contains only a summary of the Settlement 
Agreement. 

The Court in charge of this case is the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, and the 
case is known as Easley v. The Reserves Network, Inc., Case No. 1:I6-cv-00544-SO (the "Litigation"). The 
person who filed this Litigation is called the Named Plaintiff, and TRN is the Defendant. 

2. \\ hat i'. thc iIi.',atitti iItitit. 

The Named Plaintiff alleges that TRN violated the Fair Credit Reporting Act by taking adverse employment 
actions (terminating or not hiring or placing those individuals) due to the results of a background check TRN 
obtained on the employee or applicant. 

TRN disputes the Named Plaintiff's allegations and denies all liability to the Named Plaintiff and the Settlement 
Class. TRN denies the Named Plaintiff's allegations and has raised a number of defenses to the claims asserted. 

The Parties are settling the Litigation to avoid the risk and expense of further litigation. No court has found 
TRN to have violated the law in any way. No court has found that the Named Plaintiff could recover any 
certain amount in this Litigation. 

Although the Court has authorized notice to be given of the proposed Settlement, this Notice does not express 
the opinion of the Court on the merits of the claims or defenses asserted by either side in the Litigation. 
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3. \\ h i iii i cic a chi actit.n ? 

Class actions are lawsuits in which the claims and rights of many people are decided in a single proceeding. In 
a class action, representative plaintiffs are called "Class Representatives." They seek to assert claims on behalf 
of all members of a class or classes of similarly situated people. By doing this, they can conserve resources by 
asserting their claims in a single lawsuit. Class actions often involve circumstances where claimed individual 
damages are too small for people to proceed on their own, but where the defendant's conduct affected a lot of 
people all in the same way. 

Lawyers who represent people who file class actions are called "class counsel." To date, the lawyers who 
brought this case ("Class Counsel") have not been paid any money for their work and have paid all their 
expenses out of pocket. They will only be paid if they win the Litigation or if the Court approves the 
Settlement. 

4. \\ Ji k t heic a ci tlenicti 1? 

The Court did not decide this case in favor of the Named Plaintiff or in favor of TRN. If approved, the 
Settlement will stop the Litigation from being litigated any more. If the Litigation continued to be litigated, 
there is a possibility that the Settlement Class would receive nothing. There is also the possibility that TRN 
would be required to pay more than it has agreed to pay as a result of the Settlement. 

Class Counsel investigated the facts and applicable law regarding the Named Plaintiffs claims and TRN's 
defenses. The Parties engaged in lengthy and arms-length negotiations to reach this Settlement. Named 
Plaintiff and Class Counsel believe that the proposed Settlement is fair, reasonable, and adequate and in the best 
interests of the Settlement Class. 

Both sides agree that, by settling, TRN is not admitting any liability or that it did anything wrong. Both sides 
want to avoid the uncertainties and expense of further litigation. 

\\ litt l. in I hc citIciiiciii 

. IIns tlt I Iii() ii I am part ol ilic ct1Iciiicii1i 

You are a part of the Settlement if TRN obtained a consumer report (also known as a background check) on you 
from February 5, 2014 until February 5, 2016, and took an adverse employment action (such as termination, not 
hiring, not placing) against you based in whole or in part on information contained in a consumer report at any 
time before April 21, 2017. 

If you received a Postcard Notice, TRN' s records indicate you are a member of the Settlement Class. If you are 
not certain as to whether you are a member of the Settlement Class, you may contact the Settlement 
Administrator to find out. The Administrator can be reached at 1 -800-XXX-XXXX. The question of class 
membership will be determined based on TRN's records. 

I he ctHcinciit RciicIit—\\ hat \ nu (ct 

6. \\ Ii at (1ttc the cI llcincii t iirJtIc? 

The Settlement provides monetary benefits for Settlement Class Members. 
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TRN will provide a settlement fund of $455,000. This money will be divided among the approximately 388 
Settlement Class Members, and will also be used to pay for any Court-approved attorneys' fees, Class 
Representative award, and administration costs. 

The exact amount each Settlement Class Member will receive will depend on the amount of fees, award, and 
costs, as well as the number of Settlement Class Members participating in the Settlement, Although this exact 
amount is not known at this time, it is estimated that each Settlement Class Member will receive $_. 

7. 1 J v cati I ct I cii cli t? 

You do not need to do anything to be eligible to receive a payment under this Settlement. Unless you exclude 
yourself from the Class, you will automatically receive a payment. 

Your interest as a member of the Settlement Class will be represented by the Named Plaintiff and Class 
Counsel. You will be bound by any judgment arising from the Settlement. If the Settlement is approved, the 
Settlement Administrator will send you a check for any money to which you are entitled under the Settlement. 

If you change your address, you must mail a notification of your new address to the Settlement Administrator or 
submit a change of address online at www.ljRL.com (Password: XXXXXX). 

\\ IlCU %S ILII(I I CI Ill' I)1JIClil? 

The Court will hold a final approval hearing on DATE at TIME to decide whether to approve the Settlement. If 
the Settlement is approved, there may be appeals. Payments to members of the Settlement Class will be made 
only if the Settlement is finally approved. This may take some time, so please be patient. 

t) \\ hat ani I in tip It c1 a hcucflt ii.  ta\ iii thc citIciucnt (Ias! 

Upon the Court's approval of the Settlement, all members of the Settlement Class who have not filed a timely 
and proper notice to exclude themselves from the Settlement Class (as well as their spouses, heirs, and others 
who may possess rights on their behalf), fully release TRN from any and all claims, lawsuits, rights, or causes 
of action of any kind that were or could have been asserted by the Class under 15 U.S.C. § 1681b(b) of the Fair 
Credit Reporting Act and any analogous state law claims. This release explicitly includes claims for actual 
damages, statutory damages, and punitive damages, as well as for attorneys' fees and costs. 

This release may affect your rights, and may carry obligations, in the future. To view the full terms of this 
release, which are contained in the Settlement Agreement, please visit www.URL,c 2  (Password: XXXXXX). 

10. I Ia (lu I g(t itit I tlic cttIciiicjit. 

If you choose to be excluded from the Settlement (or "opt out"), you will not be bound by any judgment or 
other final disposition of the Litigation and you will not receive any settlement payment. You will retain any 
claims against TRN you might have. To opt out, you must state in writing your desire to be excluded from the 
Settlement Class. Your request for exclusion must be sent by first class mail, postmarked on or before 
DATE, addressed to: 

Easley v. The Reserves NtWk, Inc. 
do Settlement Administrator 
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If the request is not postmarked on or before DATE, your request for to exclude yourself will be invalid, 
and you will be bound by the terms of the Settlement approved by the Court, including without limitation, the 
judgment ultimately rendered in the case, and you will be barred from bringing any claims which arise out of or 
relate in any way to the claims in the Litigation as specified in the release referenced in paragraph 9 above. 

11 II ldon I \ilII(11 iii&I1 iii I tI( lR\Iui II1( 1III(tIIIiU4IuI(.r 
- 

No. Unless you exclude yourself, you give up any right to sue TRN for the claims that this Settlement resolves. 
If you have a pending lawsuit, speak to your lawyer in that case immediately. 

12, It I ccIttdc ri)\cII. c.iu I icI hciictii Irtni this Scttkuiciit? 

No. If you exclude yourself, you are not part of the Settlement. 

Fhc I ci's Repi scu1iiit \ (UI 

. I hi c a Ia er iii Ihk case? 
- 

The Court has appointed Berger & Montague, P.C. as Class Counsel: 

E. Michelle Drake 
Berger & Montague, P.C. 

43 SE Main Street, Suite 505 
Minneapolis, MN 55414 

You may hire your own attorney to advise you, but if you hire your own attorney, you will be responsible for 
paying that attorney's fees. 

14. I I ill t hc Ia ci's a iid ( 'Ias Rc1)I'CSCII Ia ti\ Cs I)C tiil! 

Class Counsel have not been paid anything for their representation of the Settlement Class to date. They have 
paid all the expenses of litigation out of their own pockets. If they were to lose the case, they would be paid 
nothing. 

In connection with this Settlement, Class Counsel intend to apply to the Court for an award of attorneys' fees, in 
an amount not to exceed $ . They also intend to seek out-of-pocket litigation expenses incurred during 
the Litigation up to $XX. The Court will evaluate whether this fee request is reasonable in light of Class 
Counsel's skill and the risk they undertook in bringing the Litigation. The Court may award less. 

The Court has appointed Named Plaintiff Londell Easley as Class Representative. Class Counsel also will seek 
a service award for the Named Plaintiff of no more than $1,500. This award is intended to compensate the 
Class Representative for the time and effort he has put into bringing this Litigation on behalf of everyone in the 
Settlement Class. 

The costs of settlement administration are expected to be approximately $XX. If awarded by the Court, all of 
these amounts will be paid directly out of the settlement fund. 
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( )hjcctiri I() 'I lic .ttictiiciit 

l. tIu l I icll thc ( otirt that I duiit IiLc Ihc citIcuiciit? 
_____________ 

You can ask the Court to deny approval of the Settlement by filing an objection. You cannot ask the Court to 
order a larger settlement; the Court can only approve or deny the Settlement as-is. If the Court denies approval, 
no settlement payments will be sent out and the Litigation will continue. If that is what you want to happen, 
you must object. 

You may object to the proposed Settlement in writing. You may also appear at the final approval hearing, 
either in person, or through your own attorney. If you appear through your own attorney, you are responsible 
for paying that attorney. 

All written objections and supporting papers must (a) clearly identify the case name and number (Easley v. The 

Reserves Network, Inc., Case No. 1:16-cv-00544); (b) contain the basis for and an explanation of the objection; 
(c) contain your name, address, telephone number, and email address (if you have one), and be signed by you or 
any attorney representing you; (d) include a statement of whether you intend to appear at the final approval 
hearing, either with or without an attorney; (e) be submitted to the Court, either by mail to the Clerk of Court, 
United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Carl B. Stokes U.S. Courthouse, 801 West 
Superior Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, or by filing your objection in person at any location of the United 
States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, and (1) a copy mailed to the Settlement Administrator. 
Your objection must be filed and/or postmarked on or before DATE. 

Any member of the Settlement Class who does not file and serve an objection in the time and manner described 
above will not be permitted to raise that objection later. 

The Parties have agreed and it is a term of the Settlement that no payments will be made to any objector, or any 
objector's counsel, for any reason, without Court approval. The Settlement Agreement further requires the 
Court to approve any payments made in connection with an objector withdrawing or dismissing an appeal. 

Ith \\ Iiits liii (IiIICl'(liC(' I)CtSccII OI)1cC1i112 all(l cCIU(Ii112? 

Objecting is simply telling the Court that you don't like something about the Settlement. You can object only if 
you stay in the Settlement. Excluding yourself is telling the Court that you don't want to be part of the 
Settlement. If you exclude yourself, you have no basis to object because the Litigation no longer affects you. 

\\ Iicrc Iu(I Iicii ill ttic ( uurl dccidc hcthcr l aj)p c thc ctiIciiiciii? 

There will be a final approval hearing to consider approval of the proposed Settlement on DATE at TIME at the 
United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Carl B. Stokes U.S. Courthouse, 801 West 
Superior Avenue, Courtroom 19A, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. The hearing may he postponed to a later date 
without further notice; Settlement Class Members should check www.URL.com (Password: XXXXXX) 
regularly for any changes to this date. The purpose of the hearing is to determine the fairness, reasonableness, 
and adequacy of the terms of Settlement; whether the Settlement Class is adequately represented by the Class 
Representative and Class Counsel; and whether an order and Final Judgment should be entered approving the 
proposed Settlement. The Court also will consider Class Counsel's application for an award of attorneys' fees 
and expenses and Class Representative's compensation. 
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You will be represented at the final approval hearing by Class Counsel, unless you choose to enter an 
appearance in person or through your own counsel. The appearance of your own attorney is not necessary to 
participate in the hearing. 

I. 1)0 I Il.I\(' to COIUC to the liearui? 

No. Class Counsel will represent the Settlement Class at the final approval hearing, but you are welcome to 
come at your own expense. If you send any objection, you do not have to come to Court to talk about it, but 
you may if you wish. As long as you filed and mailed your written objection on time, the Court will consider it. 
You may also pay your own lawyer to attend, if you wish. 

li). \lav I 1)cIL at Illi hcarint? 
______________________________ 

You may ask the Court for permission to speak at the final approval hearing. To do so, you must send with 
your objection a notice of intention to appear at the hearing as described in Paragraph 15 above. You cannot 
speak at the hearing if you excluded yourself. 

( •ettiii \Iore lulolnIalo)rI 

20. \rc there iiiore detaih aht)I1t the 'etiIeinciit? 

This Notice is only a summary. For a more detailed statement of the matters involved in the Litigation or the 
Settlement, you may refer to the papers filed in this case during regular business hours at the office of the Clerk 
of the Court, United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Carl B. Stokes U.S. Courthouse, 801 
West Superior Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, File: Easley v. The Reserves Network, Inc., Case No. 1:16-cv-
00544. The full Settlement Agreement and certain pleadings filed in the case are also available at 
www.URL.com (Password: XXXXXX) or can be requested, in writing or by phone, from the Settlement 
Administrator. 

21. 1Ios do I et mote hit elihitioli? 
_______________ 

You can visit www.URL.com (Password: XXXXXX) or contact the lawyers representing the Settlement Class, 
identified in Paragraph 13 above. Please do not contact the Court for information. 

['I 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO 

EASTERN DIVISION 

LONDELL EASLEY, individually and as a 
representative of the Class, 

Plaintiff, 

V. 

THE RESERVES NETWORK, INC., 

Defendant. 

Case No.: l:16-cv-00544 
JUDGE SOLOMON OLIVER, JR. 

[PROPOSED] PRELIMINARY 
APPROVAL ORDER 

Based on Plaintiff's Unopposed Motion for Preliminary Approval for the Proposed Class 

Action Settlement between Plaintiff Londell Easley ("Named Plaintiff' or "Class Representative") 

and The Reserves Network, Inc. ("TRN" or "Defendant") in the above-captioned matter 

("Lawsuit"), as set forth in the Settlement Agreement entered into between Plaintiff and Defendant 

(the "Settlement Agreement"), and for good cause shown therein, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED: 

Unless defined herein, all capitalized terms in this Order shall have the same 

meanings as set forth in the Settlement Agreement. 

2. For settlement purposes only, the Court preliminarily finds that the Settlement of 

the Lawsuit, on the terms and conditions set forth in the Settlement Agreement, including all 

exhibits thereto, is fair, reasonable, adequate and in the best interest of the Settlement Class 

Members and within the range of reasonableness for preliminary settlement approval. The Court 

finds that: (a) the Settlement Agreement resulted from extensive arms-length negotiations; and (b) 

the Settlement Agreement is sufficiently reasonable to warrant notice of the Settlement to persons 

in the Settlement Class and a full hearing on the approval of the Settlement. The Settlement 
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Agreement, including its exhibits, and the definition of words and terms contained therein, are 

incorporated by reference in this Order. 

3. Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3), the Court conditionally certifies, for settlement 

purposes only, the following Settlement Class with respect to the claims asserted against TRN in 

the Lawsuit: 

All Individuals against whom an adverse action was taken before April 22, 2017 
regarding their employment with Defendant based in whole or in part on information 
contained in a consumer report generated from February 5, 2014 through February 5, 
2016. 

4. The Court preliminarily finds, for purposes of settlement only, that the Lawsuit 

meets all the prerequisites of Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, including that: 

(a) The Settlement Class appears to be so numerous that joinder of all members is 

impracticable; 

(b) There appear to be questions of law or fact common to the Settlement Class for 

purposes of determining whether this Settlement should be approved; 

(c) The Named Plaintiff's claims appear to be typical of the claims being resolved 

through the proposed Settlement; 

(d) The Named Plaintiff appears to be capable of fairly and adequately protecting the 

interests of the Settlement Class in connection with the proposed Settlement; 

(e) Common questions of law and fact appear to predominate over questions affecting 

only individual persons in the Settlement Class. Accordingly, the Settlement Class appears to be 

sufficiently cohesive to warrant settlement by representation; and 

(f) Certification of the Settlement Class appears to be superior to other available 

methods for the fair and efficient resolution of the claims of the Settlement Class. 
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5. For settlement purposes only, the Court preliminarily certifies Plaintiff Londell 

Easley as the Class Representative. The Court preliminarily appoints Berger & Montague, P.C. 

as Class Counsel. The Court preliminarily finds that Class Counsel have and will fairly and 

adequately represent the interests of the Settlement Class Members. Plaintiff and Class Counsel, 

on behalf of the Settlement Class, are authorized to take all appropriate action required or permitted 

to be taken by the Settlement Agreement to effectuate its terms. 

6. Class Counsel and Defendant will hire a third-party administrator (the "Settlement 

Administrator") to assist in the administration of the Settlement and the notification to Settlement 

Class Members. The Settlement Administrator will be jointly agreed to by Class Counsel and 

Defendant and chosen after soliciting competitive bids. The costs and expenses for the 

Settlement Administrator shall be paid subject to the terms of the Settlement Agreement. The 

Settlement Administrator will be responsible for carrying out the tasks set forth in the Settlement 

Agreement. 

7. The Court approves the Postcard Notice for distribution in accordance with the 

schedule set forth in the Settlement Agreement. The Court finds that the proposed method of class 

notice fully satisfies the requirements of due process, the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and 

constitutes the best notice practicable under the circumstances and shall constitute due and 

sufficient notice to all persons entitled thereto. 

8. All Settlement Class Members have the right to either opt-out or object to this 

Settlement pursuant to the procedures and schedule included in the Settlement. The opt-out and 

objection deadlines shall be calculated as set forth in the Settlement Agreement and shall be 

included on the Postcard Notice where so indicated. 
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9. A Final Approval Hearing shall take place before the Honorable Solomon Oliver, 

Jr. on 
_____________, 

201_at , at the United States District Court, Northern District of Ohio, 

801 West Superior Avenue, Cleveland, Ohio 44113, in Courtroom 19A, to determine: whether 

the proposed Settlement of the Lawsuit on the terms and conditions provided for in the Settlement 

Agreement is fair, reasonable and adequate and should be approved; whether the Final Approval 

Order, as provided for in the Settlement Agreement, should be entered; and the amount of any 

fees and costs that may be awarded to Class Counsel, and the amount of any service award that 

may be awarded to the Named Plaintiff, as provided for in the Settlement Agreement. The Court 

will also hear and consider any properly lodged objections at that time under the process set forth 

in the Settlement Agreement. The Final Approval Hearing may be postponed, adjourned, or 

rescheduled by order of the Court without further notice to the Settlement Class Members. 

10. Objections by any Settlement Class Member to the Settlement Agreement shall 

be heard by the Court at the Final Approval Hearing. Written objections shall be sent to the Clerk 

of Court and the Settlement Administrator and must state the case name and number; the basis 

for and an explanation of the objection; the name, address, telephone number, and email address 

of the Settlement Class Member making the objection; and a statement of whether the Settlement 

Class Member intends to appear at the fairness hearing, either with or without counsel. In 

addition, any objection must be personally signed by the Settlement Class Member and, if 

represented by counsel, then by counsel. Any Settlement Class Member who fails to object in 

the manner prescribed herein shall be deemed to have waived his or her objections and shall be 

foreclosed from making any objections, whether by appeal or otherwise, to the Settlement. 
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11. Class Counsel shall file any application for an award of attorneys' fees and costs, 

Class Representative service payment, and payment of the Settlement Administrator's expenses 

no later than fourteen (14) days prior to the Opt-Out Deadline. 

12. All proceedings in the Lawsuit against TRN are stayed pending final approval of 

the Settlement, except as may be necessary to implement the Settlement or comply with the terms 

of the Settlement Agreement. 

13. If the Settlement Agreement is terminated or is not consummated for any reason 

whatsoever, or if final approval of the Settlement is not obtained (or if such approval is reversed, 

vacated, or modified in any material respect by this or any other court), this certification Order, 

including the preliminary certification of the Settlement Class and appointment of the Class 

Representative and Class Counsel shall be void and/or vacated, and this action shall proceed as 

though the certification and appointments never occurred, with Plaintiff and Defendant being 

deemed to have reserved all their respective rights to propose or oppose any and all class 

certification issues. 

14. Neither this Order nor the Settlement Agreement shall constitute any evidence or 

admission of liability by Defendant, or an admission regarding the propriety of any certification 

for any particular class for purposes of litigation, nor shall they be offered in evidence in this or 

any other proceeding except to consummate or enforce the Settlement Agreement or the terms of 

this Order, or by Defendant in connection with any action asserting any claim of release. 

15. Counsel for the Parties are hereby authorized to utilize all reasonable procedures 

in connection with the administration of the Settlement that are not materially inconsistent with 

either this Order or the terms of the Settlement Agreement. 
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16. This Court retains jurisdiction to consider all further applications arising out of or 

connected with the Settlement Agreement. This Court may approve or modify the Settlement 

without further notice to the Settlement Class. 

SO ORDERED: 

Dated: 
Hon. Solomon Oliver, Jr. 
United States District Judge 
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO 

EASTERN DIVISION 

LONDELL EASLEY, individually and as a Case No.: 1:16-cv-00544 
representative of the Class, JUDGE SOLOMON OLIVER, JR. 

Plaintiff, 
[PROPOSED] FINAL 

V. APPROVAL ORDER 

THE RESERVES NETWORK, INC., 

Defendant. 

The Court, having considered Plaintiff's Unopposed Motion for Final Approval of the 

Proposed Class Action Settlement between Plaintiff Londell Easley ("Named Plaintiff' or "Class 

Representative") and The Reserves Network, Inc. ("TRN" or "Defendant") in the above-captioned 

matter ("Lawsuit"), the Settlement Agreement entered into between Plaintiff and Defendant (the 

"Settlement Agreement"), the objections and comments received regarding the proposed 

Settlement, the record in the Lawsuit, the submissions and arguments presented by counsel, and, 

having held a Final Approval Hearing on [DATE], finds that: 

Unless defined herein, for purposes of this Final Approval Order, all capitalized 

terms in this Final Approval Order shall have the same meanings as set forth in the Settlement 

Agreement. 

2. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action and over the 

settling parties hereto. 

3. On [DATE], this Court preliminarily approved the Settlement and certified, for 

settlement purposes, the Settlement Class as defined in the Settlement Agreement. 
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4. Pursuant to the Court's Preliminary Approval Order, the Postcard Notice was 

mailed. The Court hereby finds and concludes that the Postcard Notice was disseminated to 

members of the Settlement Class in accordance with the terms set forth in the Settlement 

Agreement and in compliance with this Court's Preliminary Approval Order. The Court further 

finds and concludes that the Postcard Notice, and the distribution procedures set forth in the 

Settlement Agreement fully satisfy Fed. R. Civ. P. 23 and the requirements of due process, were 

the best notice practicable under the circumstances, provided individual notice to all members of 

the Settlement Class who could be identified through reasonable effort, provided an opportunity 

for the Settlement Class Members to object or exclude themselves from the Settlement, and support 

the Court's exercise of jurisdiction over the Settlement Class as contemplated in the Settlement 

and this Final Approval Order. The Court hereby finds and concludes that the notice provided by 

Defendant to the appropriate state and federal officials pursuant to the Class Action Fairness Act 

of 2005, 28 U.S.C. § 1715, fully satisfied the requirements of that statute. 

5. The Settlement Class Members were given an opportunity to object to the 

Settlement. The Settlement Class Members who made valid and timely requests for exclusion are 

excluded from the Settlement and are not bound by this Final Approval Order. 
_______ 

Settlement 

Class Members requested exclusion. The identities of such persons are set forth in the Settlement 

Administrator's Declaration, ECF No. 

6. The Settlement Agreement was arrived at as a result of arms' length negotiations 

conducted in good faith by experienced attorneys familiar with the legal and factual issues of this 

ease. 

7. The Settlement Agreement is fair, reasonable, adequate, and in the best interests of 

the Settlement Class in light of the complexity, expense, and duration of litigation, as well as the 
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risk involved in establishing liability and damages and in maintaining the class action through trial 

and appeal. 

8. The settlement consideration provided by the Settlement Agreement constitutes fair 

value given in exchange for the release of the Released Claims against the Released Parties. The 

Court finds that the consideration provided to members of the Settlement Class is reasonable, 

considering that facts and circumstances of the claims and affirmative defenses asserted in the 

Lawsuit, and the potential risks and likelihood of success of alternatively pursuing trial on the 

merits. 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED THAT: 

9. The Settlement Agreement is finally approved as fair, reasonable, adequate, just, 

and in compliance with all applicable requirements of the United State Constitution (including the 

Due Process Clause) and all other applicable laws, and in the best interest of the Settlement Class. 

Any objections have been considered and are hereby overruled. The Settlement Agreement, which 

shall be deemed incorporated herein, and the Settlement are finally approved and shall be 

consummated in accordance with the terms and provisions thereof, except as amended by any 

subsequent order issued by this Court. 

10. Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(b)(3), the Lawsuit is hereby certified, for settlement 

purposes only, as a class action on behalf of the following Settlement Class Members with respect 

to the claims asserted in the Lawsuit: 

All individuals against whom an adverse action was taken before April 22, 2017 regarding 
their employment with Defendant based in whole or in part on information contained in a 
consumer report generated from February 5, 2014 through February 5, 2016. 

11. The certification of the Settlement Class shall be binding only with respect to the 

Settlement of the Lawsuit. In the event that the Court's approval of the Settlement is reversed, 
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vacated, or modified in any material respect by this or any other Court, the certification of the 

Settlement Class shall be deemed vacated, the Lawsuit shall proceed as if the Settlement Class had 

never been conditionally certified (including Defendant's right to oppose any subsequent motion 

for class certification), and no reference to the Settlement Class, the Settlement Agreement, or any 

documents, communications, or negotiations related in any way thereto shall be made for any 

purpose. 

12. Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23, the Court certifies Named Plaintiff Londell Easley 

as the Class Representative and appoints Berger & Montague, P.C. as Class Counsel. 

13. For settlement purposes only, the Court finds that the Lawsuit satisfies the 

applicable prerequisites for class action treatment under Fed. R. Civ. P. 23, namely: 

• The Settlement Class is so numerous that joinder of all members is 

impracticable; 

• There are questions of law and fact common to the Settlement Class 

Members; 

• The claims of the Class Representative are typical of the claims of the 

Settlement Class Members; 

• The Class Representative and Class Counsel have fairly and adequately 

represented and protected the interests of all of the Settlement Class 
Members; 

• Common questions of law and fact predominate over questions affecting 

only individual Settlement Class Members; and 

• Class treatment of these claims will be efficient and manageable, thereby 
achieving an appreciable measure ofjudicial economy, and a class action is 
superior to other available methods for a fair and efficient adjudication of 
this controversy. 

14. The Plaintiff, Settlement Class Members, and their successors and assigns are 

permanently barred and enjoined from instituting or prosecuting, either individually or as a class, 
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or in any other capacity, any of the Released Claims against any of the Released Parties, as set 

forth in the Settlement Agreement. Pursuant to the release contained in the Settlement Agreement, 

the Released Claims are compromised, settled, released, discharged, and dismissed with prejudice 

by virtue of these proceedings and this Final Approval Order, provided, however, that the Released 

Claims shall not be construed to limit the right of Defendant or any member of the Settlement 

Class to enforce the terms of the Agreement. 

15. This Final Approval Order is binding on all Settlement Class Members, except 

those individuals who validly and timely excluded themselves from the Settlement. 

16. To the extent permitted by law and without affecting the other provisions of this 

Final Approval Order, this Final Approval Order is intended by the parties and the Court to be res 

judicata and to prohibit and preclude any prior, concurrent, or subsequent litigation brought 

individually, or in the name of, and/or otherwise on behalf of, the Named Plaintiff or any 

Settlement Class Member with respect to the Released Claims based upon the same alleged facts. 

17. The Court hereby retains continuing and exclusive jurisdiction over the parties and 

all matters relating to the Lawsuit and/or Settlement Agreement, including the administration, 

interpretation, construction, effectuation, enforcement, and consummation of the Settlement, 

including its injunctive provisions, and this Final Approval Order. This Final Approval Order 

finally disposes of all claims and is appealable. 

18. This Final Approval Order is not, and shall not be construed as, an admission by 

Defendant of any liability or wrongdoing in this or in any other proceeding. 

19. The Court approves Class Counsel's application for 
$______________ 

in 

attorneys' fees and costs, and for a service award to the Named Plaintiff in the amount of 
$_______ 

each, to be paid from the Settlement Fund. The Court further approves and authorizes the 
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deduction of an amount not to exceed 
$_________ 

from the Settlement Fund to cover the Settlement 

Administrator's costs. These amounts are to be deducted from the Settlement Fund as set forth in 

the Settlement Agreement. Save and except as expressly set forth to the contrary in this Final 

Approval Order and any judgment issued by this Court regarding Plaintiff's application for fees 

and costs, Plaintiff and Class Counsel shall take nothing by their claims and each party shall bear 

his or its own fees, costs, and expenses in connection with this Lawsuit. Except for the award to 

Class Counsel specified above, no fees or funds shall be paid to any other counsel representing 

any Settlement Class Members. 

20. This Court hereby dismisses the Lawsuit against Defendant, including all claims 

against said Defendant, with prejudice, without costs to any party, except as expressly provided 

for in the Settlement Agreement. 

21. Finding that there is no just reason for delay, the Court orders that Final Approval 

Order shall constitute a final judgment pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 54 that is binding on the settling 

parties and the Settlement Class. 

SO ORDERED: 

Dated:_________________ ________________________ 
Hon. Solomon Oliver, Jr. 
United States District Judge 
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